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I. CUSTOMER Non-Disclosure Agreement

This RFP and all information communicated by CUSTOMER and affiliates to the Brokerage Service Providers in connection herewith, is the confidential and proprietary information of CUSTOMER and affiliates.  Such information should be made available only to those employees of the providers who have a need to know in preparation of a response to this RFP and should not be disclosed to any other carrier or firm.  Providers may use this information only in responding to this RFP and may not make copies of the RFP, or any other documents provided by CUSTOMER and affiliates in connection herewith, without the express written consent of CUSTOMER and affiliates.  Any violations of this provision may disqualify the provider in the RFP process.  CUSTOMER and affiliates reserve the right to disclose any information provided by the Brokerage Service Providers in response to this RFP to its employees and to any outside consultants and attorneys retained by CUSTOMER and affiliates in connection with this matter.

For more information please refer to the CUSTOMER Non-Disclosure Agreement previously signed by your company as a prerequisite to receiving this RFP.



II. Executive Summary

CUSTOMER, Overview of Business and History. 

III. Proposal Parameters
This request for proposal (RFP) is a request for service and pricing information to assist CUSTOMER and affiliates in selecting a Brokerage Service Provider to facilitate importing product into CUSTOMER US locations.  CUSTOMER and affiliates assume no financial responsibility, direct or indirect, for the cost of preparation of proposals by providers and may choose not to select a provider based strictly on the response to this RFP.  CUSTOMER and affiliates do not make commitments by virtue of this RFP to purchase any or all services from the responding providers.  CUSTOMER and affiliates expressly reserve the right to accept or reject any or all responses and to alter or waive any of the RFP requirements as required.  By participating in the RFP, providers consent to and authorize CUSTOMER and affiliates to verify any responses contained herein.

RFP Correspondence
All questions relating to this RFP shall be conveyed in writing via e-mail to ________. Questions and answers will be sent out to all parties that receive this RFP to ensure all have the same data and information. 

RFP Anticipated Timeline
The Brokerage Service Provider RFP Selection Process Plan is as follows:
· RFP Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) Issue Date:  
· RFP Issue Date:   or upon receipt of signed NDA
· Submission deadline for provider response:  at 5PM EST (No Extensions)
· Bid Finalists Announced:  
· Bid Selection Announced: 
· Preparation of operating guidelines and EDI interfaces:   – 
· Implementation Date:  

Proposal Submission
The format for responding to this RFP must be consistent with the bid structure, sequencing and nomenclature.  Responses should be direct, concise and complete.  Unless otherwise indicated, DO NOT change the order or numbering on any of the documents provided.  When completing the spreadsheets, if there is no data to report, please leave the cell blank (do not put dashes or text such as “N/A” and “0” in these cells).  If there are relevant attachments that you wish to add, please insert them immediately following the section in question and reference them clearly. Reference materials not directly relevant to the RFP response should be omitted or included as additional appendices.  An emailed version of your response must be received on or before the deadline, and a hard copy of your response must be mailed on or before the deadline.  

Deadline for Submission of Proposals
Date:	
Time:  	
Name: 	
Email:	

Unsolicited Proposals and Modifications
This RFP is by invitation only.  Unsolicited proposals and modifications to proposals offered in response to this RFP will not be accepted or received by CUSTOMER and affiliates.  No modifications will be accepted after the stated deadline for proposal submission.

Withdrawal of Proposals
Proposals may be withdrawn by email, letter, fax or in person prior to October 5, 2005. CUSTOMER and affiliates reserve the right to withdraw the RFP at any time and for any reason.

Post Proposal Information Requirements
CUSTOMER and affiliates may request additional information about a proposal by sending an email inquiry to the provider primary contact.  The provider shall send an email response to CUSTOMER and affiliates within two (2) working days following receipt of the inquiry.  Providers may be contacted by telephone and asked to respond to additional questions regarding the proposal.  CUSTOMER and affiliates require that each provider have a single point of contact (to be indicated in your response) to receive and respond to such inquiries.

Evaluation of Proposals
CUSTOMER and affiliates expect to award the services listed in this RFP to the Brokerage Service Provider whose proposal best meets our overall objectives as supported by the following selection criteria:
· Organization strength and commitment (Global Logistics, Financial Strength, Dedicated Resources)
· Regulatory compliance management and expertise
· Brokerage service performance and continuous process improvement programs
· Infrastructure support (Systems & Technology)
· Brokerage fee structure

Rejection of Proposals
Providers must furnish all information requested by this RFP in the format specified herein.  The reason for any deviation from or exception to the requirements must be clearly noted or the proposal may be disqualified.

Volume and Trade Lanes
This RFP has been prepared and is intended to outline the majority of CUSTOMER and affiliates Brokerage Service Provider requirements for US imports.  Please note that historic and forecast volume data may not be comprehensive and is subject to change.  Volumes forecasted may increase or decrease or be eliminated all together, as our product demand is dependent on market conditions.  CUSTOMER and affiliates require RLF (Remote Location Filing) for Customs clearance.

Price Structure
CUSTOMER and affiliates encourage the recipient of this bid to offer aggressive and innovative pricing proposals, including option of multiple year pricing agreement.

Terms of Agreement
CUSTOMER and affiliates commitment to the designated Brokerage Service Provider will become effective          .  All pricing will be effective from this date for a minimum of three (3) years, with extension of an additional year dependent on service level and pricing.  Pricing should reflect the value of a long term partnership of three years or more.  The newly established agreement to be derived from this bid process will supersede any previous agreements that exist between the Brokerage Service Provider and CUSTOMER and affiliates.




Cancellation and Termination
CUSTOMER and affiliates reserve the right to terminate, suspend or amend the agreement by the mutual consent of the Parties with a minimum of 60 days notice in writing. In case of termination of the contract, CUSTOMER and affiliates request a 120 day transitional period at current terms and conditions.

Freight Claims
The party responsible according to ICC Incoterms and UCC (Uniform Commodity Codes) will initiate loss or damage claims.  CUSTOMER global insurance is the Chubb Group of Insurance Companies.

Rights to Information
CUSTOMER and affiliates reserve the right to use all ideas or adaptations contained in a response.  Selection or rejection of a proposal will not affect this right.  CUSTOMER and affiliates will require one original hardcopy of the proposal that is signed (in ink) by an authorized representative of the provider and his/her full name and business address must be included.  The individual signing the proposal must have the authority to bind their corporate entity to the proposed services.

IV. CUSTOMER Service Requirements

Communication Expectations
CUSTOMER and affiliates and the selected Brokerage Service Provider will develop agreed upon service expectations and a written “Standard Operating Procedures” manual (SOP) to be utilized by both CUSTOMER and the selected provider. CUSTOMER and affiliates have the following general communication expectations:
· Both parties to designate single point of contact for routine communications
· All communication must be via email
· Requests are to be responded to in a timely manner (within 24 hours or a lesser time specified for urgent matters)
· Any exceptions to the requirements and expectations should be communicated immediately via email as they occur
· Brokerage Service Provider to continuously update CUSTOMER and its affiliates on all relevant issues as well as present solutions to potential challenges and opportunities
  
Service Requirements
CUSTOMER and affiliates, in conjunction with the selected provider, will develop specific service expectations as part of the SOP.  CUSTOMER and affiliates have the following general Brokerage Service requirements:
· C-TPAT certification and continued supply chain security program initiatives
· ACE membership
· Designated single point of contact responsible for management of the account
· 24/7 customer service support
· Capability to provide dedicated onsite to be located at CUSTOMER Corporate office (quote separately)
· Remote Location Filing (RLF)
· Electronic documents and EDI interfaces supporting paperless environment
· Broker required to pay all duties and taxes to Customs on CUSTOMER behalf and to invoice CUSTOMER accordingly as part of Broker invoicing procedures
· Quarterly Review Meetings to discuss service performance, non-conformance issues, process improvements, supply chain security updates, etc.

The above is not an all-inclusive list.  CUSTOMER encourages an innovative approach on the part of the Brokerage Service providers to highlight services that will add value to the proposed partnership.
Performance Measurements
CUSTOMER and affiliates, in conjunction with the selected provider, will develop service and compliance performance measurements as part of the SOP.  CUSTOMER will measure our Brokerage Service Provider on the following:
· Customs Clearance 5 Days Prior to Vessel Arrival (service)
· Customs Clearance on Airfreight Shipments by Arrival Date (service)
· Entry Accuracy (compliance)
· Customer Service (service)
· Nonconformance Reporting Tool (service and compliance)
· Continuous Process Improvement and Value-Added Services
All non-conformance issues will be documented by CUSTOMER and reviewed by all parties involved to determine an agreed upon corrective action plan consistent with expected service levels.

Documentation and Record Keeping Requirements
CUSTOMER and affiliates maintain a program to meet all Customs record-keeping regulations.  As an agent acting on behalf of CUSTOMER, the Broker will be responsible for providing all records and documentation required.  In addition, the Broker will maintain its own records in accordance with Customs record-keeping regulations and will make available upon demand any records maintained on CUSTOMER activities.

The Broker will provide the importer a complete Customs entry packet that includes all documents pertinent to the entry submission or required by law or regulations for the entry of merchandise within 5 business days of clearance.  Supporting the objective of a paperless documentation environment, documents will be supplied in an electronic format to be specified by CUSTOMER and affiliates and agreed upon in advance. Additional data must include CUSTOMER’S purchase order and part number at the line item level.

For compliance purposes, CUSTOMER requires, at a minimum, the backup listed below be included in each entry packet as applicable.  

· Broker Invoice 
· Entry Summary (CBP Form 7501)
· Entry/Immediate Delivery (CBP Form 3461)
· Commercial Invoice
· Packing List
· Bill of Lading or Air Waybill
· Certificate of Origin (NAFTA, GSP, Other Duty Free Certification)
· Licensing Agreements
· TSCA Statements
· Importer’s Declarations
· Shipper’s Declarations
· Manufacturer’s Declarations
· Container Manifest
· FCR
· Arrival Notice
· Delivery Order
· Transportation Invoice if Broker is paying freight on CUSTOMER behalf
· Invoices or a copy of a check to support any charges paid on CUSTOMER behalf
· Any and all other documents required for clearance
The Broker will also be expected to provide a copy of any records associated with entry and post entry correspondence and communications with Customs or any government agency on behalf of CUSTOMER and affiliates.

Invoicing Requirements and Payment Terms
As a general practice, CUSTOMER requires issuance of one invoice for all charges pertaining to one entry.   CUSTOMER standard payment terms are NET 60.  CUSTOMER will not be responsible for late payment if service provider does not invoice at the proper address as indicated below:

		CUSTOMER ADDRESS
 
Broker will provide an invoice for all charges, including brokerage, duties, taxes, fees and any other charges incurred on CUSTOMER behalf.  Backup documentation must be provided for all charges prior to payment of an invoice.  CUSTOMER requirement is establishment of electronic documentation and 810 EDI messages as soon as possible to facilitate the invoicing and payment process.

Reporting Requirements
CUSTOMER and affiliates require our Broker to provide online and electronic reports to facilitate management of our business to include:  
· Monthly and yearly reports summarizing:
· Entry volume
· Duties and taxes
· Entry selectivity
· Broker performance (service and compliance metrics)
· Daily exception reports on the operations process flow
· Online real time tracking and tracing of clearance status
· Liquidation reporting and analysis
· Ad hoc reports upon request
Specific reporting requirements will be communicated as part of the SOP process.

EDI Requirements
CUSTOMER and affiliates require EDI communications to facilitate tracking, reporting and payment as a required service within this RFP.  These EDI interfaces must be created, tested and completed by Implementation Date. Required milestone EDI data is as follows:
· Advanced shipment notice (856)
· Entry event milestones (315)
· Brokerage service invoices (810)

Post Entry Correction Process
Entries filed on behalf of CUSTOMER and affiliates will be reviewed for accuracy.  If errors are found, the Broker will need to make appropriate correction with Customs.  CUSTOMER and affiliates will notify the appropriate Broker contact in writing via email as soon as the error is found.  The Broker will have one (1) week or five (5) business days to make the corrections with Customs.  All entries will be tracked in a post-entry database and followed through to correction.
V. CUSTOMER Broker Service Provider Questionnaire

General Questionnaire
1. Provide a profile of your organization worldwide including the following and comment on how our account will be managed within this structure (refer to Attachment D):
· Location of world headquarters/corporate offices
· Number and location of wholly-owned, subsidiary, division or agency offices
· Organizational chart showing corporate structure from the highest ranking officer through regional management
· Specifically note operations managers servicing locations as noted on the CUSTOMER Location Maps (refer to Attachment B)
2. Summarize the array of global logistics services offered by your company, including but not limited to the following:  Brokerage, Origin Consolidation, Freight Forwarding, and Vendor Management.  Please indicate the percentage of your organization’s personnel resources dedicated to each of the service areas.
3. Provide a profile of your organization’s operational structure that would be dedicated to supporting the CUSTOMER account (refer to Attachment D).  Please note on the attachment the average number of years experience required to hire for the various positions.
4. Describe the services that could be provided by an implant located at CUSTOMER corporate office.
5. Provide corporate financials (P&L, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow) for two most recent fiscal years.
6. Describe your company’s global account process and provide a proposed implementation plan for the CUSTOMER account.
7. List any alliances, organizations or associations with which your company maintains an affiliation.
8. Please provide three global account references for which your organization provides brokerage services and EDI feeds.  Provide contact names, email addresses and phone numbers for these accounts as service references.

IS Requirements & Questionnaire
1. Describe your global IS system infrastructure.  Is the same IS system used worldwide?
2. Do you depend on an outside firm to maintain your system or is your system maintained in house?
3. Is your company EDI capable and for what types of transactions (i.e. 856, 810, 315)?  What is the average time required to set up each of these messages?  Please bear in mind that all EDI interfaces must be up and running by the Implementation Date.
4. Provide your organization’s website address and summarize customer interface capabilities.
5. Is your accounting system integrated with your entry systems and global reporting systems?
6. Does your system maintain the following milestone data and how often are they updated?
· Date and time documents received
· Date and time arrival notice received
· Date and time pre-alert received
· Shipment ETA
· Date and time Customs entry filed
· Date and time Customs entry released
· Date and time duties and taxes paid
· Liquidation date
7. Are you able to receive shipment and clearance documents via EDI or electronically?

Customs Clearance and Brokerage
1. What Customs clearance transaction volume does your company handle into the US per year?
2. Is your company a member of ACE?
3. Describe your Customs brokerage organizational structure and operational process flow to support trade compliance.
4. Please describe your Customs entry and file management process.
5. From time of release, how long does it take to send the entry package (requirement of one invoice per entry) to the customer?
6. Please describe the procedures you follow when Post-Entry Corrections are required.
7. Do you have a specific HTS database associated with an individual customer?
8. Describe how the Customs clearance processing system integrates into your logistics and global IS infrastructure.
9. Is your customs clearance system integrated into your reporting system?
10. Are you able to provide the following timely, accurate and current trade data?
· Global management of product harmonized tariff classifications and reports
· Country specific harmonized tariff number and duty rate information
· Country specific duty importing regulations
· NAFTA and other trade agreement updates

Security and Quality Questionnaire
1. Is your company CTPAT certified?  Please comment on your organization’s ability to meet and exceed supply chain security criteria and current best practices.
2. Is your organization ISO/QS certified?  If so, are all offices worldwide actively participating?  If not, please note the exceptions.
3. What type of quality control procedures does your organization have?  Is there a corrective action plan in place?  Please explain and provide examples of quality reporting.
4. Does your organization require employees to participate in standardized quality employee training programs?  If yes, please list the programs.
5. Please explain your corrective action procedure for handling errors, customer complaints, or other problems internally?  What processes are in place to prevent errors from reoccurring?

Reporting Requirements Questionnaire
1. Please comment on your ability to provide monthly reporting on the following:
· Customs entry transaction volumes
· Brokerage fees paid
· Duties and taxes paid
· Other import costs
· Entry selectivity
2. Can you provide customized monthly reports in electronic format (i.e. Excel or CSV format) and what is the average turnaround time from date of request?
3. Is there a fee for providing client reports?
4. Do customers have the capability to run customized reports from your system?
5. Please attach examples of:
· Three system generated/standard reports
· Sample customized report that can be provided
